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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Tel: +91 22 6185 4000 
Fax: +91 22 6185 4101 

To The Members of BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Blue Star Climatech Limited 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and 
notes to financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS") 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows 
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing ("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

' ~~/ 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if·such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the 
matters stated in (i)(vi) below. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 



Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration 
during the year and hence compliance with the provisions of section 197, read 
with the Schedule V of the act are not applicable to the company. 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on 
its financial position; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

ii i. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 

v . The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and 
has not proposed final dividend for the year. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has 
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year 
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail was not 
enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes. 

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting 
software for which the audit trail feature was operating . 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (''the Order") issued by 
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2024 

oJ 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm· s Registration No. ll 7366W/W-100018) 

~~ 
~ Ketan Vora 

Partner 
Membership No. 100459 

UDIN: 24100459BKFASV6877 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED ("the Company") as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction 
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted 
our aud it in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
J provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

c)' . ference to financial statements. 

11· ,._-
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate . 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria 
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the 
respective Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

¼!~ ,a 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 24100459BKFASV6877 

Place: Mumbai 
"✓Date: April 30, 2024 

0 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital 
work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets (including intangible assets under development). 

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, 
capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets, so to cover all the items once 
every 2 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, during the year 
certain property, plant and equipment were due for verification during the year and 
were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

( c) Based on the examination of the registered title deed and other records provided 
to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included 
in property, plant and equipment, are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including 
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31,2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventories except for goods in transit were physically verified during the year 
by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its operations. For stocks held with third parties at the 
year end, written confirmations have been obtained by the management and in 
respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received subsequent to the year-
end or confirmations have been obtained from the parties. No discrepancies of 10% 
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical 
verification of inventories/alternate procedures performed, as applicable, when 
compared with books of account. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points 
of time during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In 
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
quarterly returns or statements comprising (stock, creditors, book debt 
statements, statements on ageing analysis of the debtors and other stipulated 
financial information) filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with 
the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no 
material discrepancies have been observed. The Company has not been sanctioned 
any working capital facility from financial institutions. 

(iii) (a) The Company has provided unsecured loans to other parties during the year and 
details of which are given below: 

Amount (Rs. In lakhs) 
Particulars Loans 

A. Aqqreqate amount qranted / provided durinq the vear: 
- Others (Emolovees) 13.21 

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect 
of above cases: 
- Others (Emoloyees) 17.40 

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity during 
the year. 

(b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above­
mentioned loans, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to 
the Company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans granted the schedule of repayment of principal has been 
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts are regular as per stipulation. 

( d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no 
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans 
given to the same parties. 

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. 
Hence, reporting under clause (iii) (f) is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees 
and securities provided as applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 

_ 1,1'..JMB 

~ 



L... 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have broadly reviewed the books of 
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and 
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of 
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues : 

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited 
by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. There were no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

(b) There are no dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited 
on account of disputes as on March 31,2024. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

(ix) (a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

x) (a) 

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or 
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no 
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under 
clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for 
long-term purposes by the Company. 

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during 
the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and 
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting 
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

~}, \1~ )/ii 
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(x) (b) The Company has issued equity shares on right basis during the year. For such 
allotment of shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 
62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been, prima facie, 
applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds 
were raised. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of (fully or partly or optionally) convertible debentures during the 
year. 

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud 
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 
of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower 
complaints received by th~ Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in terms of Rule 4 of the 
Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 
6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, provisions of 
Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our Opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the 
year and covering the period upto March 31, 2024. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act,1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year covered by our 
audit but had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 342.28 lakhs in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the 
year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or 
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore 
or more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of 
Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the 
year. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:April 30, 2024 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm 's Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

~ ' ' Ketan Vora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 24100459BKFASV6877 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

A ASSETS 
1. Non-current assets 

(a) Property plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Right-of-use assets 
(d) Intangible assets 
(e) Intangible assets under development 
(f) Financial assets 

(i) Loans 
(ii) Other financial assets 

(g) Income tax assets (net) 
(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 
(i) Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total current assets 
Total Assets 

B EQUITY AND LIABILmES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(b) Other non current liabilities 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total - Non-Current Liabilities 

3, Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii ) Trade payables 

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
(d) Income tax liabilities (net) 

Total current liabilities 
Total Equity and liabilities 

Notes 

4 
4A 
5 
6 

6A 

8 
BA 
20 
20 
12 

9 

7 
10 
11 
8 

BA 
12 

13 
14 

15 
18 
20 

15 

16 

17 
18 
19 
20 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t Lakhs f Lakhs 

35,709-72 26,684.76 
8,288.02 3,148.11 
1,291.15 523.23 

99.75 90.00 
4.24 29.49 

7.47 7.59 
85.77 76.14 

0.94 

- 36.47 
5,561.73 2,577.00 

51,047.85 33,173.73 

12,521.37 8,196.50 

2,891 .15 -
13,833.59 6,409.47 

329.08 826.96 
9,93 1.52 

601 .60 1.50 
669.77 2.147.00 

30,856.49 17 582.95 
81,904.34 50 756.68 

51,500.00 9,660.00 
1,363.45 (901.81) 

52,863.45 8,758.19 

. 16,173.56 
2,890.85 1,891.94 

315.16 -
3,206.01 18,065.50 

6,000.00 11,683.39 

3,077.74 1,195.88 

13,705.10 7,903,52 

1,660.16 2,669.76 
1,172.40 454,38 

123.78 26,06 
95.70 -

25,834.88 23,932.99 
81,904.34 50.756.68 

Summary of material accounting policies 3 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1 • 44 

In terms of our report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

+~ Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No. 100459 
Date: April 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

Company Secretary 

Date: April 23, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

of Directors of 

= 4!~ I &d'---
Vir S. Advanl 
Director 

DIN:015~ / 

t?1 ry~ 
Sivakumar Ramani 
Chief Financial Officer 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 
Total Income (I) 

Expenses 
Cost·of raw materials consumed 

Changes In inventories offinlshed goods and work~n-progre_ss 

Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses (II) 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (1-11) 

Tax expense 
i) Current tax 
ii) Deferred tax 
Total tax expense 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
years: 
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect 
Other comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year 

Total comprehensive income/Closs) for the vear 

Earning per equity share of i!' 10 each 
Basic (in a!') 
Diluted (in a!') 

Summary of material accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

In terms of our report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

~ 
Ketan\iora 
Partner 
Membership No. 100459 

Date: April 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

i!' Lakhs i!' Lakhs 

21 71,875.44 14,047.92 

22 378.72 131.97 
72,254.16 14,179.89 

23 61,832.92 13,592.44 

23 (1,339.31) (1,543.08) 

24 3,352.39 985.06 
25 1,329.56 499,86 
26 2,192.85 380.18 
27 2,121.59 987.89 

69,490.00 14,902.35 

2,764.16 (722.46) 

20 138.56 0.93 
20 353.12 (36.70) 

491.68 (35.77) 

2,272.48 (686.69) 

(8.71) 1.34 
20 1.49 (0.23) 

(7.22) 1.11 

2,265.26 (685.58) 

28 
0.66 (1.45) 
0.66 (1.45) 

3 
1 -44 

DIN: 01790498 DIN: 01571278 

~ "' 

Company Secretary 

Date: April 23, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

Chief Financial Officer 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No: U29243MH2021PLC360573 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(A) Equity Share Capital 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

Changes in equity 
Balance as at April 1, 2023 share capital due to 

prior period errors 

9,660.00 -

For the year ended March 31, 2023 

Changes in equity 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 share capital due to 

prior period errors 

2,660.00 -
(B) Other Equity 

For the year ended March 31 , 2024 
Reserves and 

Particulars 
surolus 

Retained Earning 
(refer note 14) 

Balance as at April 1. 2023 (902.92) 

Profit for the year 2,272.48 
other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2,272.48 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,369.56 

For the year ended March 31 2023 
Reserves and 

Particulars 
suplus 

Retained Earning 
(refer note 14) 

Balance as at April 1. 2022 (216.23) 

Loss for the vear (686.69) 
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -
Total comprehensive income for the vear (686.691 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 (902.92) 

Summary of material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

In terms of our report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No. 100459 
Date: April 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

'!: LaKns 

Restated balance at the 
Changes in 

beginning of the current 
equity share Balance as at 

capital during March 31, 2024 
reporting year 

the year 
- 41 ,840.00 51 ,500.00 

t LaKns 

Restated balance at the 
Changes In 

beginning of the current 
equity share Balance as at 

capital during March 31, 2023 
reporting year 

the year 
- 7,000.00 9,660.00 

f Lakhs 
Other Comprehensive 

Income Total other 
(Remeasurement of equity 

defined benefit planl 

1.11 (901 .81) 

- 2,272.48 
(7.22) (7.22) 

(7.22) 2,265.26 
(6.11) 1,363.45 

'Lakhs 
Other Comprehensive 

Income Total Other 
(Remeasurement of Equity 

defined benefit olan\ 

0.00 (216.23) 

0.00 (686.69\ 
1.11 1.11 

1.11 (685.581 

1.11 1901.81) 

3 

1 - 44 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

BLUE;~•-•reo { 1~ 1 ~ 

B. Thiagarajan Vir S. Advani 
Director ~. Director 
DIN: 01790498 DIN:01571278 

Company Secretary 

Date: April 23, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

~ ; 
Chief Financial Officer 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No: U29243MH2021PLC360573 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit/(Loss) before tax 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Finance cost 
Interest income 
Income from mutual fund 
Net Translation gain on monetary assetsniabililies 
Loss on property, plant & equipment other than freehold land discarded 

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 
Adjustment for working capital : 
{lncrease}/decrease in trade receivables 
(lncrease)/decrease in Inventories 
(lncrease)/decrease in other assets/financial assets 
lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables 
lncrease/(decrease) in other current liabilities 
lncrease/(decrease) in provisions 
Cash generated from operations 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 
Net cash generated from I (used in) operating activities {A) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property plant and equipments and other intangible assets. 
[Including Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development] 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase of current investments 
Sale of current investments 
Interest received 
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) short term borrowings (net) 
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) from non current borrowings 
Inter corporate deposit received from related parties 
Inter corporate deposit repaid to related parties 
Finance cost paid 
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B + C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISES OF : 
Balances with banks: 
- In current accounts 
Cash on hand 
Balance as oer statement of cash flows 

f Lakhs 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31 , 2023 

2,764.16 (722.46) 

2,192.85 380.18 
1,329.56 499.86 

(3.39) (7.57) 
(218.72) . 

12.98 0.62 

156.11 . 
6,233.54 150.63 

(7,424.12) (6,409.47) 
(4,324.87) (8,196.50) 

(139.70) (3,624.10) 
7,670.46 9,084.35 
1,711 .85 2,320.09 

89.02 20.87 
3,816.19 (6,654.13) 

(41 .92) (1 .87) 
3,774.27 (6,656.00) 

(20,211.42) (19,282.80) 

12.53 . 
(42,845.74) 
40,173.31 . 

3.39 7.57 
(22,867.93) (19,275.23 

(4,683.39) 1,500.00 
(16,173.56) 12,500.00 

3,500.00 6,500.00 
(4,500.00) . 
(1,387.27) (1 ,258.34) 
41,840.00 7,000.00 
18,595.78 26,241 .66 

(497.88) 310.43 
826.96 516.53 
329.08 826.96 

328.58 826.96 
a.so . 

329.08 826.96 

Note: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 on the Statement of Cash Flow as 
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended. 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2024: 

Non current Current 
Particulars borrowinas borrowings 

f lakhs f lakhs 

At the beginning of the year 16,221 .77 11,692.88 
Cash flows during the year (net) (16,221.77) (5,692.88) 
Current maturity of long term borrowings - -
At the end of the year (excluding Interest liability on borrowin!ls) - 6,000.00 

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31 2023 : 

Particulars 

At the beginning of the year 
Cash flows during the year (net) 
Current maturity of long term borrowings 
At the end of the year (excluding interest liability on borrowings) 
Non Cash changes due to : 
-Interest on borrowinas (clubbed under other financial liabilities) 

At the end of the vear /including Interest liability on borrowings) 

Summary of material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

In terms of our report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Kfit~~ 
Partner 
Membership No. 100459 
Date: April 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 30 , 2024 

C, 

Non current 
borrowings 

3 
1 -44 

Irec or 
DIN:01790498 _ _ 

ekar 
fficer 

Company Secretary 

Date: April 23, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

f lakhs 

6,856.95 
12,500.00 
(3,183.39) 
16,173.56 

48.21 
16,221 .77 

Current 
borrowings 

f lakhs 

500.00 
8,000.00 
3,183.39 

11,683.39 

9.49 
11,692.88 

Vir S. Advani 
Director 

;3/ 
Sivakumar Ramani 
Chief Financial Officer 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 

CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 
Blue Star Climatech Limited ("the Company") is a public company incorporated on 17th May, 2021 to carry on the business as manufacturer 
and dealer of all kinds of air conditioners, commercial refrigeration equipment, cooling appliances and other related products. The registered 
office of the Company is located at Kasturi Buildings, Jamshedji Tata Road, Mohan T Advani Chowk, Mumbai - 400020. 

The financial statements of the Company were approved by its Board of Directors on April 23, 2024. 

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(a) Basis of preparation and presentation 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair 
values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The financial statements are presented in and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated." 

(b) Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the 
management of the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating 
to contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented. 
Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the periods 
in which the estimates are revised and in future periods affected. 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are disclosed in Note 29. 

(c) Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue can be reliably 
measured. Revenue is measured at the amount of the transaction price (which excludes estimates of variable consideration that are 
constrained in accordance with paragraphs 56-58) that is allocated to that performance obligation . Revenue is net off trade discounts, rebates, 
and other similar allowances. Revenue excludes indirect taxes which are collected on behalf of the Government. 

i. Revenue from sale of goods: 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer. Indicators that control has been 
transferred include the establishment of the Company's present right to receive payment for the goods sold, transfer of legal title to the 
customer, transfer of physical possession to the customer, transfer of significant risks, and rewards of ownership in the goods to the customer, 
and the acceptance of the goods by the customer. 

ii. Interest income: 
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. 

(d) Employee benefits 
Short term benefits: 
Salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, and other short-term benefits, accruing to employees are recognized at undiscounted 
amounts in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 

CIN No: U29243MH2021PLC360573 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Retirement benefits 

Defined contribution plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling 
them to the contribution. 

Defined benefit plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling 
them to the contribution.The present value of defined benefit obligation of employees' provident fund is determined using the projected unit 
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each year end. 

The Company's liability towards gratuity is determined based on the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets 
and the net liability or asset is recognized in the balance sheet. The net liability or asset represents the deficit or surplus in the plan (the surplus 
is limited to the present value of the economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions}. The 
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out 
at each year end. Defined benefit costs are composed of: 
i. service cost - recognized in profit or loss; 
ii. net interest on the net liability or asset - recognized in profit or loss; 
iii. re-measurement of the net liability or asset - recognized in other comprehensive income 

Other long-term employee benefits: 
Compensated absences that are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the 
related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 

(e} Leases 

As a lessee 
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

At the date of commencement of a lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (''ROU assets"} and a corresponding lease liability for 
all leases, except for short-term leases and low-value leases. Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease 
before the end of the lease term. Lease payments to be made under such reasonably certain extension options are included in the 
measurement of ROU assets and lease liabilities. ROU assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life or the lease 
period whichever is shorter. 

Lease liability is measured by discounting the lease payments using the interest rate using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are 
re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Impairment of ROU assets is in accordance with the policy for impairment of non- financial assets. 
The Company has opted for the exemption provided under Ind AS 116 for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, hence the lease 
payments associated with those leases are treated as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As a lessor 
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

(f} Foreign currencies 

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee (~}-
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated 
monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses 
arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in profit or loss. 
Foreign currency denominated non - monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost are not retranslated. 

(g} Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change during the year, in the deferred tax asset or liability. Current and 
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or in 
equity, in which case the related current and deferred taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 

Current and Deferred Taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Tax assets and tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts. 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 

CIN No: U29243MH2021PLC360573 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

i. Current income tax 
Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions, and 
exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 

ii. Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. 

(h) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses. 

Costs comprise of costs incurred to bring the assets to their location and working condition up to the date the assets are put to their intended 
use. 
When significant components of plant and eq·uipment are replaced separately, the Company depreciates them based on the useful lives of the 
components. Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. All other assets are depreciated to their 
residual values on a written-down value basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: 

Nature of tangible asset Useful life (years) 

Factory buildings 30 
Other buildinas 60 
Roads 5 
Temporary structure 3 
Plant & Machinery 8-20 
Infrastructure Development Riqhts 30 
Furniture and fixtures 10 
Office equipment 5 
Vehicles 5 

Computer - desktop, laptops, servers and networks 3 

Useful lives of plant and machinery are higher than those indicated in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 based on management 
estimates and technical assessment made by a technical expert. 

The company has not revalued its Property plant and equipment (Including ROU), and Intangible assets. 

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant, and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, as appropriate. 

Tangible assets are derecognised upon its disposal, or when no further economic benefits are expected to arise from continued use of assets. 
Any gain or loss arising from derecognition is included in profit or loss. 

Capital work-In-Progress and capital advance 
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-progress.The cost comprises purchase 
price, borrowing cost, if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 
use. Any trade discount and rebat are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition/construction of 
property,plant and equipment which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under the 'capital advances'. 

(i) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight- line basis over 
their estimated useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

Intangible assets are derecognised upon its disposal, or when no further economic benefits are expected to arise from continued use if assets. 
Any gain or loss arising from derecognition is included in profit or loss. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are as mentioned below: 

Nature of intan ible asset Useful life 
Software ac uired) 6 vears 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 

CIN No: U29243MH2021PLC360573 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of Intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, as appropriate. 

Intangible asset under development 
The Company capitalizes intangible assets under development for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. The initial capitalization 
of costs is based on management's judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development 
project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalized, 
management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied, and the expected 
period of benefits. 

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets 
Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets with finite lives are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined for the individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of 
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is 
reduced to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

(k) Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another 
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized by the Company when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of a financial instrument are adjusted to fair value, except where the financial instrument is measured at Fair Value through profit or loss, 
in which case the transaction costs are immediately recognized in profit or loss. 

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks that are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

For the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold 
these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding . 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income on initial recognition . The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss. 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 

CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred to repurchase in the 
near term. 
Whenever the vendor has raised issue on contractual / performance obligation on goods and services delivered or received and is under 
discussion with the vendor are treated as the disputed amount. 
Financial liabilities are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. 

Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings, financial guarantee contracts and trade, and other payables) are after initial recognition, 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (EIR) method. 

Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue costs. 

Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial asset expire or it transfers the 
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Fair value measurement 
When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial statements cannot be measured based on 
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 
establishing fair values. Judgments include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk, and volatility. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the 
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in their entirety, which 
are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement 
date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

(I) Inventories 
Inventories including Work- in- Progress (other than construction contracts) are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower, the 
cost is worked out on a weighted average basis. Cost includes all charges for bringing the goods to their present location and condition. Net 
realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the 
sale. 

(m) Trade Receivables 
Trade receivables are financial assets within the scope of measurement requirements of Ind AS 109. All financial assets are initially at fair 
value plus or minus the transaction cost. Financial assets in the form of trade receivables, shall be initially measured at their transaction price 
unless those contain a significant financing component determined in accordance with Ind AS 115. 

(n) Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions 
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. The amount recognized as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation . 
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(o) Segment reporting 
The Company is engaged only in the business of manufacturing and dealing room air conditioners in India. It has no other reportable segments 
as per the terms of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 108 on Segment Reporting. 

(p) Operating Cycle 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. 
The entity's operating cycle is twelve months. 

(q) Earnings per share 
The Companies Earnings per Share ('EPS') is determined based on the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both attributable to equity 
shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive shares outstanding during the year 
including share-based payments, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 

(r) Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Interest on borrowing is calculated using effective interest rate (EIR) method and is recognized in profit or loss. 

(s) Current I Non-current classification : 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenU non-current classification . An asset is treated as current 
when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period . 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities. 

Recent accounting pronouncements: 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to 
the existing standards applicable to the Company. 
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4. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Particulars Buildings 
Plant and 

equipment 

Cost 

At April 1. 2022 

Additions during the year 10,561.57 13,631 .29 
Disposals/Transfers during the year . 
At March 31, 2023 10,561.57 13.631.29 

At April 1, 2023 10,561.57 13,631.29 
Additions during the year 407.1B 5,001.01 

Disposals/Transfers during the year (18.26) 
At March 31, 2024 10,968.75 18,614.04 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At April 1, 2022 
Disposals/Transfers during the year 
Provided during the year 72,66 220,13 
Al March 31, 2023 72.66 220.13 

At April 1, 2023 72.66 220.13 
Disposalsffransfers during the year (0.65) 
Provided durlng the year 363.89 1,329.82 
Al March 31, 2024 436.55 1,549.30 

Net Book Value 

Al March 31, 2024 10,532.20 17,064.74 
Al March 31 , 2023 10,488.91 13,411.16 

Note 
1. All the title deed of immovable property are in the name or the company. 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

1.969.42 

682.63 
. 

2,652.05 

2,652.05 

4,889.14 
. 

7,541.19 

50.36 

67.66 
118.02 

118,02 
. 

244.B6 
362.88 

7,178.31 
2,534.03 

f lak~s 

Furniture Office 
Vehicles Computers Total 

& fixtures equipment 

. . 1,969.42 

17.83 244.42 25,137.74 
. 

17.B3 244.42 . . 27,107.16 

17.83 244.42 . 27,107.16 
79.91 354.23 65.73 405.18 11,202.38 

. . (18.26) 
97.74 59B.65 65.73 405.18 38,291.28 

. . . 50.36 
. 

0.14 11.45 372.04 
0.14 11.45 . 422.40 

0.14 11.45 . . 422.40 
. . . (0.65) 

5.81 107,17 7.93 100,33 2,159.81 
5.95 118.62 7.93 100.33 2,581.56 

91 .79 480.03 57.80 304.85 35,709.72 
17.69 232.97 26,684.76 

2. According lo assessment of the management, there are no events or changes in circumstances that suggest impairment or PPE as per IND AS 36 Impairment of 
assets. Consequenlly, no provision for impairment has been reported. 

4(A). CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 
, Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at March As at March 

31 , 2024 31, 2023 
Capital Work in Progress 8.288.02 3.148.11 
Total Caoital Work In Proaress 8.288..D.2 3 148.11 

Aoolna of Caoltal work in o(oaress 
As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31. 2023 

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 
year 3 years 1 year 

Project'SI In ~rogross 8,286.67 1 35 8,288.02 2,748.10 400.01 

Total capital work in proQress 8,286.67 1.35 . . 8,288.02 2,748.10 400.01 

Nole: 
1. Refer note 33 for disclosure of contractual commitment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 

2. There are no projects/items fomiing part of above schedule whose complelion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan. 

3. According to assessment of lhe management, there are no events or changes in circumstances thal suggesl impairment of CWIP as per IND AS 36 Impairment of 
assets. Consequently, no provision for impairment has been reported. 

More than 3 
years 

, Lakhs 

Total 

3,148.11 

3.148.11 
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5.RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 

Particulars Land -
leasehold 

Cost 
At April 1, 2022 401.20 
Additions during the year 130.00 

At March 31, 2023 531.20 

At April 1, 2023 531.20 
Additions during the year 781.21 

At March 31, 2024 1,312.41 

Accumulated Amortisation 

At April 1, 2022 3.27 
Provided during the year 4.70 
At March 31, 2023 7.97 

At April 1, 2023 7.97 
Provided during the year 13.29 
At March 31, 2024 21.26 

Net Book Value 
At March 31, 2024 1,291.15 
At March 31, 2023 523.23 

f Lakhs 

Total 

401.20 
130.00 

531.20 

531.20 
781.21 

1,312.41 

3.27 
4.70 
7.97 

7.97 
13.29 
21.26 

1,291.15 
523.23 
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Particulars 

Cost 

At April 1. 2022 
Additions during the year 

At March 31, 2023 

At April 1, 2023 
Additions during the year 
At March 31, 2024 

Amortisation 

At April 1, 2022 
Provided during the year 
At March 31 , 2023 

At April 1, 2023 
Provided during the year 
At March 31, 2024 

Net Book Value 
At March 31, 2024 
At March 31, 2023 

6(A). INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 
Ageing of Intangible assets under development• 

Particulars 

Projects in 11rogress 
Total lntagible assets under development 

Particulars 

Erojects la 11rogress 
Total lntagible assets under development 

Software 
(acquired) 

. 

93.44 

93.44 

93.44 
29.50 

122.94 

. 
3.44 
3.44 

3.44 
19.75 
23.19 

99.75 
90.00 

Less than 1 
year 

1.89 
1.89 

Less than 1 
year 

29.49 
29.49 

f Lakhs 

Total 

. 
93.44 

93.44 

93.44 
29.50 

122.94 

. 
3.44 
3.44 

3.44 
19.75 
23.19 

99.75 
90.00 

'Lakhs 
As at Mar 31, 2024 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total 
years 

2.35 - . 4.24 
2.35 . . 4.24 

f Lakhs 
As at March 31, 2023 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total 
years 

. . . 29.49 

- . . 29.49 
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7. INVESTMENTS 

Particulars 

I. Current investments 

Investment in units of mutual funds 
Unquoted investment in mutual funds 
Growth Scheme 
600,648.069 Units (March 31, 2023 : Nil Units) In ABSL Liquid 
fund 
11,349.297 Units (March 31, 2023: Nil Units) in ABSL Money 
Manager Fund 
10,272.761 Units (March 31, 2023: Nil Units) in Kotak Liquid 
Fund 
258.345 Units (March 31, 2023 : Nil Units) in Kotak Money 
Market Fund 

Total Current investments 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31 , 2023 

f Lakhs t Lakhs 

2,340.61 -
38.68 -

501 .21 -

10.65 . 

2,891.15 -
8. LOANS (UNSECURED CONSIDERED GOOD UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED) 

Non-current 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

f Lakhs ' Lakhs 
Loans to employees 7.47 7.59 
Total loans 7.47 7.59 

Note: 

Current 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
t Lakhs f Lakbs 

9.93 1.52 
9.93 1.52 

1.The company has not made loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties either severally or jointly with any 
other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

2. Loan given to employees are as per terms of employment. 

SA. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Non-current Current 

Particulars As at As at As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

' Lakhs t Lakhs t Lakhs f Lakhs 

Security deposits, considered good 85.77 76.14 1.60 1.50 
PU Receivable - 600.00 . 
Total other financial assets 85.77 76.14 601.60 1.50 

9. INVENTORIES 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
f Lakhs ' Lakhs 

Raw materials & components 9,638.98 6,653.42 
Work-in-progress 2,701 .39 1,225.45 
Finished goods 181.00 317.63 
Total inventories 12,521.37 8,196.50 
Inventories Includes Goods-in-transit 
Raw materials & components 2,977.77 2,938.15 
Total Goods in Transit \ 2,977.77 2,938.15 
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10 TRADE RECEIVABLES 
Curra.nl 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

' Lakhs f Lakhs 
Trade recewables considered good - unsecured 13,833,59 6,409.47 
Less: lmoainnenl Allowance 
Total trade receivables 13,833.59 6,A09.47 

Agoina or trade rnc~lvDblcs 
Particulars As. at Mil,ch 31 , 2024 

OutsI.1ndJng for followfn!J parlods from di.le d.1111: or Payment.I 

Not due Less l:h;rn 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

Undisputed 
Trade receivables considered good• unsecured 12.908.17 925.42 . . 

12,9011.17 925,42 
Disputed 
Trade receivables considered good • unsecured 

-
Tohll ln:ida r■cel\labln!lii 12.90B.17 925.42 
la&S. lmoalrrnmit AUowance 
TorAI trade recefvnbtes 12 908 17 925.42 

Agelnq of trade receivables 
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 

Outstanding for follawing pt:rfods from d.ue dal• of p4ymImts 

Not duec Less than 6 mo.nIh1 6 months to 1 year 1·2 years 

Undisputed 
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 5 056.54 1,352.93 

5..056.54 1.352.93 

Disputed 
Trade receivables considered good • unsecured 

-
TolDJ trndo rocolvabr~s 5.056.54 1,352.93 
Less: lmpainnent Allowance -
Total trade receivables 5.056.54 1,3S2.9l 

11. CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENT 

As al As al 
Particulars Marclt31 2024 March 31. 2023 

? Lal<hs f Lakhs 
Cash and cash equivalent 
Balances with banks: 
- In current accounts 328,58 826.96 
Cash on hand 0.50 . 
Tola.I cash .ind a:sh eaulvalent 329.08 826.96 

12 OTHER ASSETS 
Non-current Cumnt. 

Particulars 
As al As at As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t LJikhs f Lakhs t Lakhs f Lakhs 
Capital advances 2,670,88 685.06 
Balances with statutory authorities 2.890.85 1,891.94 363 94 1,916,63 
Vendor advances 252.96 188.14 
Prepaid exoenses 52 87 42.23 
Tot.QI other ;a.,ol• 5,561.73 2.577.00 669.77 2.1,1.00 

Note: 
Balances with statutory aulhorilies (non-current) pertains Lo customs duly, integrated goods and services tax, social welfare surcharge deferred 
against bonded manufacturing scheme (MOOWR Scheme) on import of capital goods. We have also recognised corresponding liability for the same 
amount under dues to sta1utory bodies (non-current) in other liabililies (refer note no. 18). 

C~tcaorisaIron of finL'lncl~I assets • 
As al 

Particulars March 31. 2024 
? l.ilkhS 

At Fair Value 
Investments frefer note 7) 2,891 . 15 
Total flnanclal assets at fair value throuah profit or loss 2,891.15 

At Amortised Cost 
Trade receivables (rerer nole 10) 13,833.59 
Cash & bank balances (refer note 11 ) 329.08 
Loans (refer note 8} 17 40 
Other financial assets (refer note 8A) 687.37 
Total financial assets carried at amortized cost 14.867.44 

2-3'years 

. 

. 

-

As at 
March 31, 2023 

f Lakhs 

. 
0.00 

6,409.47 
826,96 

9,11 
77,64 

7,323.18 

More than 3 years Total 

13.833.59 
13 833.59 

. 
. 

13,833.59 

- . 
13,833.59 

More than 3 years Tot;al 

6.409.47 
6,409.47 

6,409.47 

s •09.,1 
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13. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised share capital 
Cumulative convertible preference Eq1.1Uy ahriro.s of l' 10 each 

shares off 10 each 

No. l: Lakhs No. ? Lakhs 
At April 1, 2022 2,000,000 200.00 30,000,000 3,000.00 
lncrease/(Oecreasel durino the vear - 368.000.000 36.800.00 
At March 31, 2023 2,000,000 200.00 398,000,000 39,800.00 
lncrease/(Decrease) durino the vear 100.000.000 10.000.00 2so.ooo,ooo 25,000.00 
Al March 31. 2024 102,000,000 10 200.00 648,000,000 64.800.DD 

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares 

Toe Company has one class of Equity Shares having par value of, 10 per share. Each share holder is entitled to one vole per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend, if any. 

In the evenl of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entiUed to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. 
The distribution will be in the proportion of number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

TermsJRights attached to cumulatfve convertible preference shares and cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares 
Each convertible prererence share ls convertible at the option of the shareholders into Equity shares. 

The preference shares shall rank for the dividend in priority to U,e equity shares of the Company in the event of increase in share capilal or winding up of the Company Up to amount of dividend or any arrears of 
dividend. Preference share holders will not have any further right lo participate in the profits or assels of the Company, 

Issued sharo capltol 
Enultv sh.t1re.s oft 10 each lssuCt.!1. su:bscrfbed & fuHv nald UD No. f Lakhs 
At April 1, 2022 26,600,000 2,660.00 
Issue of Right Shares during the year 70,000,000 7,000.00 
At March 31, 2023 96,600,000 9,660.00 
l&suo or Rloht SMr .. dun~o u,e vear 4tB.400,000 41 .840.00 
At Morch 31 2024 515,000,000 51.500.00 

The company has issued 41,840,000 shares under Right Issue at face value of Rs 10 per share aggregaling lo Rs 4,184,000,000 issued to the existing equity shareholder for cash at par in eight tranches. 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in lhe Company 

A> •t lll•roh 31 202 . .4 
Name of the shareholder Numbers % holding in 

the class 
Blue Star Limited 514 999 994 99.99% 

Shrueholdlna p.11ttem or promotc-rs 1;md Chiillngos-ln holdlr1a dutlna tho vnar-

% holdlny ln 
lhe chlH 

!>99 994 99.99% 

Share held by promoters at the end of the year As or Morch 31 2024 Ao ot Morch 31 1023 

Name of Promoters 
Numbers of shares I % of total 

shares I 
% Chungc-s 

during l.he y,211:r 
Numbers of I 

shares 
% of total I % Changes 
shares during the year 

Blue Star limiled and its nominees 515.ooo.ooo I 100.00 %1 O.DO % 96.600.000 I 100,00%1 0,00 % 

Aggregate number of equity shares issued for consideration olher than cash 

A regato Numbar or Sh;re.s 
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 

202.4 2023 
Ful 23 600.000 23.600 000 

14. OTHER EQUITY 
t LokM 

Particulars Attribu~blc to ownc,.s of the comp.tny 
As at March U ,l0l4 As at M;rch 31,2023 

Re.tajned Earnings 
Openino Balance (902.92] (2 16.23) 
Add: Net Proflt/(Loss} for the year as PM Statembnt of Ptofit and Loss 2,272.48 (686.69) 
Closing Balance 1,369.56 (902.92) 

Other comprehensive income 
i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 

Ooenina Balance 1.11 
Add; Additions du.ring tbe year (7.22) 1.11 
Closinn Balance (6.11) 1.11 

Tobi 1 363..45 1901.811 

Retained earnings - The amount that can be distribuled by the Company as dividends lo ils equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Thus the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirely, 
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15. BORROWINGS 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 
Non-current borrowings 
Term loan - Secured 
Total non-current borrowings 

Short term borrowings 
At amortised cost 
Unsecured 
Current maturities of long term debt 
Working Capital Demand Loan from banks 
Unsecured 
Inter corporate deposit received from related parties ( refer note 32) 

Total current borrowings 
Aggregate secured loans 
Aggregate unsecured loans 
Total borrowings 

1. Term loans from Banks 

As at As at 
March 31 , 2024 March 31 , 2023 

f Lakhs f Lakhs 

- 16,173.56 
- 16,173.56 

- 3,183.39 
. 1,500.00 

6,000.00 7,000.00 

6,000.00 11,683.39 
- 20,856.95 

6,000.00 7,000.00 
6,000.00 27,856.95 

a. Term Loan obtained for setting up plant in Sri City for manufacturing Room air-conditioners from HSBC Bank has been re-paid in full in 
October, 2023. (March 31, 2023 - 8.60% to 8.90% p.a.) 

b. Term Loan obtained for setting up plant in Sri City for manufacturing Room air-conditioners from Kotak Bank has been re-paid in full in 
October, 2023. (March 31, 2023- 7.60% to 7.63% p.a.) 

c. Term Loan obtained for setting up plant in Sri City for manufacturing Room air-conditioners from Axis Bank has been re-paid in full in 
October, 2023 (March 31, 2023 - 7.63% to 7.69% p.a.) 

2. Working Capital Demand Loan 
Working capital facility obtained from Axis Bank and HSBC Bank for the purpose of meeting working capital requirements has been re­
paid in full on due dates. (March 31,2023 - 7.5% to 7.75% p.a). 

3. lntercorporate Deposit (Related Party) 
Inter Corporate Deposits obtained from Related parties for meeting business requirements with interest ranging 5.50% to 7.98% p.a. ((March 31, 
2023 : 5.35% to 7.98%) linked to 12 Months T bill + 0.75% with frequency being last day of the quarter ending (June/Sep/Dec/March). 
Repayment ending on one year. 
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16. Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Trade Payables 

Total outslanding dues to Micro and small enterprises• 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

Total P~vablo 

DISCLOSURE AS PER SECTION 22 OF MSME ACT 

Particulars 

(a) (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at 
the end of accounting year 

(ii) Interest due on above 

(b) Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006) 
along with the amount of the payment made to lhe suppier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year, 

(c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the due dale during lhe year) 
but without adding the interest specilied under the Micro, Small & Mediurn 
Enterprises Development Act. 2006. 
(d) Amount or interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accountino year'" 

(e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid lo the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small & Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Asat As al 
March 31. 2024 March 31 . 2023 

f Lakhs f Lakhs 

3,077.74 1,195.88 

3.077.74 1.195.88 

13,705.10 7,903.52 

16,762.84 9,099.40 

Asat Asat 
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023 

f Lakhs f Lakhs 
3,076.28 1,195.88 

1.46 . 

1.46 

1.46 

3,077.74 1,195.88 

The informalion has been given in respecl or such vendors to the exlent they could be identified as 'Micro and Small Enterprises' on the 
basis of inrarmation available with the Company. 
• lnteresl on overdue balances of Micro and SmaO Enterprises is ruly pro\1ded Interest provided is unclaimed by the vendor. 

Ageing of poyab!os 

Particulars As at March 31 , 2024 
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 

year 
Acceptances 
Undisputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,703.43 374.30 
Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 11,183.68 2,446.16 75,26 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

13,887.11 2.820.47 75.26 

Disputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues of creditors other than micro and smc1H enterprises 

. 
Total payables 13.887.11 2,820.47 75..26 

Ageing of poyabl•s 

Particulars As al March 31 . 2023 
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 

year 

Acceptances 
Undisputed 
Dues lo micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.60 1,195.28 
Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2-479.14 5,424.38 

2.479.74 6,619.66 

Dlsputeg 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises . 
Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises . . 

. 
Total payables 2,479.74 6.619.66 

f Lakhs 

2-3 years More than 3 Total 
years 

. - 3,077.74 
13,705.10 

. 16,782.84 

. . 

. -
16 782.84 

f ukhs 

2-3 years More than 3 Total 
years 

1,195.88 
7,903.52 
9.099.40 

. 

. 
9,099.40 
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17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Particulars 

Financial liabilities al amortized cost 
Foreign exchange forward contracts 
lnteresl accrued but not due on borrowings 
Credilors - capital expenditure 

Total other financial liabilities 

Cateaorisation or nnanclal llablll tlas carried at amortised cost 

Particulars 

Borrowings (refer nole 15) 
Trade payables (refer note 16) 
Creditor - capilal expenditure (refer note 17) 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowinQs (refer note 17) 
Total financial liabliiti~s carried at amortized cost 

Note 
a) Foreign exchange forward contracts 

Current 
Asat 

March 31, 2024 
, Lakhs 

2.15 
. 

1,658.01 

1,660.16 

Asal 
March 31, 2024 

'l' Lakhs 

6,000.00 
16,782.84 

1,658.01 
. 

24,440.85 

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention of reducing the foreign exchange risk of buyers credit and trade payables. 
These contracls are not designated in hedge re lationships and are measured at fa ir value through profit or loss. 

b) The carrying amount of all other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation or their fair value . 

18 OTHER LIABILITIES 

AS at 
March 31, 2023 

'l' Lakhs 

7.24 
57.70 

2,604.82 

2,669.76 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

'l' Lakhs 

27,856.95 
9,099.40 
2,604.82 

57.70 
39,618.87 

Non Current Current 

Particulars 
As at As at As at As at 

March 31 , 2024 March 31. 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
ii' Lakhs I' Lakhs 'l' Lakhs f Lakhs 

Advances from customers - 6.69 . 
Dues to statutory bodies 2,890.85 1,891.94 1,157.68 450.93 
Others . 8.03 3.45 
Total other current liabilities 2,890.85 1,891.94 1,172.40 454.38 

19. PROVISIONS 

Current 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31 , 2023 

f Lakhs f Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 34) 
Provision for gratuity 92.02 6.17 
Provision for compensated absences 31 ,31 19.89 
Provision for suoer annuation 0.45 
Total Provisions 123.78 26.06 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 
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20. INCOME TAX 

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are: 
Reconcilialion or tax expense and the accounting profil multiplied by India's domeslic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 • 

(a) Current tax assetJliability 

Particulars 

Ooanlna Br.l:inca 
Less: Current tax Davable for Lhe vear 
Add; Taxes oaid 
Closlna B;,l:inco 

The closing balance of current lax asset/liability is nel of provision for tax 

(bl Deferred Tax asset/liability 

The breakup of Dererred tax asset/liability is as follows: 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Asset - rAl 
Unabso.cbed Oeoreciation 
Pro~isions made d.is.allow.ed and allowed onlv an oavment basis 
Olhars 
Deferred Tax UabiJitv -1B1 
Acce.lerale.d deorec.iatioo for tax. numoses 
Olhers 
Net Oet.l~rr~d TD>I As5et/LJabltitv - 'A-81 

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Asset -

Unabsorbed Deareciation 
Provisions made disallowed and allowed onlv on oavment basis 

Deferred Tax Liabilitv -
Accelerated deoreciation for tax aumoses 
Others 
Total 

As at As at 
J.lar<:h 31, 2024 March 31 2023 

f Lakhs , l.al<hs 
0.94 

1136.561 10.931 
41 .92 1,87 

195.701 0.94 

As at As at 
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023 

' Lakhs t Lakhs 

251 ,38 
189.85 2.21 

127 

1500.261 1216.69 
10.23 

1315.161 36.47 

Chn,ual (cre.dil) to Statement of P&L 

March 31 2024 March 31 . 2023 
f Lakhs f Lakhs 

251.38 1251.38 
(187.651 12.21 

269.39 216.89 

353.12 136.701 

Chorgol (Cradlll to OCI 

M•n::h 31 202' March 31 2023 
t L11khs f Lakhs 

-

-
11.49 0.23 
11.491 0.23 

(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023: 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t Lakh.s f Lakhs 
Accounltnn. nrcifil b<!forc jnc:cmo ta:it 2.764. 16 1722.42 
Income tax at India's statutorv income tax rate of 17 .16% (March 31, 2023: 17. 16%) 474,33 1123.97 
Exoenses n0l 8)fowed tor wx ................... 1.00 87.35 
Add.Won.al pbVanoes Iott.a)!: ..... ,~ /1 ,25) -
Others 17 60 0.85 
lnco~ t.a.x nt effectlvo tax rato 491.68 /35.771 

(d) Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

' Lakho r Lakhs 
In Current tax 
Current ta.x on orofit for the vear 138.56 0,93 
Total current U1111: Glnt!rt.5G 138.56 0.93 

111 Dolarrad t.ox 
lt□ecreasel/.lnc.r:ease in deJerred tax liabilities 289.39 216.119 
Decreaselllncreasel in deferred tax assels 63.73 '253.59 
Tolaf dnferrod Ul :ic ·o,:nan~e/ihenofil\ 353.12 136.70 
Income lax exnense 491 .68 135_77 

(e) Income tax expense reported in the other comprehensive income 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t' Lakhs , Lakhs 
il Current tax 
~erneasurement n~inntossl on defined benefil t lans 
Ti:nnl c.urrant to~ cucoensi= 

iii Deferred tax 
Fair value of eauitv investment -
Effeclive oortlot\ of aain/lJoss) on cash flow hedaes 
Remeasureroeat n::1in,(lossl on defined benefit [ lans !t.A9) 0.23 
Total deferred tax exaen!iQ/CbanefiU (I.JS 0,23 
lr1con111 til>t oxoense (1.49 0.23 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
CIN No : U29243MH2021 PLC360573 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 

Sale of products 
Other operating revenue 
- Production Linked Incentive 
- Scrap Sales 

Total revenue from operations 

Note: 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

, Lakhs , Lakhs 

70,732.46 13,886.41 

600.00 -
542.98 161 .51 

71 ,875.44 14,047.92 

The Company is eligible for claiming incentive under the Production Linked Incentive Scheme of the Government of 
India for production of Heat Exchangers and Sheet Metal Components. The Company has accrued the benefit on the 
basis of the claims to be submitted before the due date. 

22. OTHER INCOME 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31 , 2024 March 31 , 2023 

'Lakhs 'Lakhs 

Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost 
- Bank deposits 1.02 7.57 
- Others 2.37 -
Gain on investment measured at FVTPL 218.72 -
Foreign exchange differences (net) (including fair value impact on - 115.89 
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss) 
Others 
Recovery of Research and Development expenses from holding 151 .03 -
company (refer note - 32) 
Others 5.58 8.51 
Total other income 378.72 131.97 

23. COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31 , 2024 March 31, 2023 

' Lakhs ' Lakhs 
Cost of material consumed 61,832.92 13,592.44 
Total cost of raw material and components consumed 61,832.92 13,592.44 

Inventories at the end of the year 
Work-in-progress 2,701 .39 1,225.45 
Finished goods 181.00 317.63 

2,882.39 1,543.08 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Work-in-progress 1,225.45 -
Finished goods 317.63 -

1,543.08 -
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress (1 ,339.31) (1,543.08) 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
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24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 34) 
Gratuity expense (refer note 34) 
Staff welfare expenses 
Total employee benefits expense 

25. FINANCE COSTS 

Particulars 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities carried at 
(a) Interest on bank borrowings 
(b) Interest on ICD 
(c) lnterst on MSME 
(d) Interest on Others 
Total Interest 
Less: Amount Capitalised 
Net Interest 
Bank charges 

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Particulars 

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 
Amortisation expense on right of use assets (refer note 5) 
Amortisation expenses on intangible assets (refer note 6) 
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t Lakhs t Lakhs 

2,728.64 651 .28 
46.90 9.17 
14.37 3.27 

562.48 321 .34 
3,352.39 985.06 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t Lakhs t Lakhs 

791 .81 1,183.08 
463.01 102.01 

3.68 4.48 
19.36 -

1,277.86 1,289.57 
- (798.72) 

1,277.86 490.85 
51.70 9.01 

1,329.56 499.86 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

t Lakhs t Lakhs 
2,159.81 372.04 

13.29 4.70 
19.75 3.44 

2,192.85 380.18 



27. OTHER EXPENSE 

Particulars 

Stores and spares consumed 
Power and fuel 
Rent 
Repairs and maintenance 

- Buildings 
- Plant and machinery 
- Others 

Insurance 
Rates and taxes 
Freight and forwarding charges 
Legal and professional fees 
Travelling and conveyance 
Printing and stationery 
Security Charges 
Telephone & Communication 
Payment to auditors (refer details A below ) 
Loss on sale of Asset 
Foreign exchange differences (net) (including fair value 
impact on financial instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss) 
Share issue expenses 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Recovery of Shared Service expenses by Related party 
(refer note 32) 

Total other expenses 

A. Payment to auditors 

Particulars 

As auditor: 
Audit fee 
Limited review 
Tax Audit 

In other capacity: 
Other services 
Re-imbursement of expenses 
Total 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

f Lakhs 
482.74 
571.74 

50.24 

101.60 
121 .50 
35.98 
58.96 
21.49 

86.38 
99.61 
19.08 
91.48 

5.64 
18.64 

156.11 
61.51 

2.15 
29.70 

107.04 

2,121.59 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

f Lakhs 

13.60 
3.71 
1.24 

-
0.09 

18.64 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

f Lakhs 
106.76 
197.17 

4.52 

8.62 
9.99 
7.22 
3.54 

17.17 
9.90 

28.42 
64.54 
17.09 
42.10 

4.68 
15.90 

268.59 
91.48 
90.20 

987.89 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

f Lakhs 

11.33 
3.09 
1.03 

0.41 
0.04 

15.90 
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28. EARNING PER SHARES (EPS) 
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations : 

Particulars 

Profit I (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (f in Lakhs) 
Weighted average number of Equity shares (Nos.) 
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share in rupees ( Face Value - f 10 per share) (inf) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31 , 2024 March 31, 2023 

2,272.48 (686.69) 
346,088,525 47,476,712 

0.66 (1.45) 

The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in equity share transactions during 
the year. 



BLUE STAR CLIMATECH LIMITED 
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29. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

The preparation of financial statements requires Management lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions aboul lhe reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
and, Income and expenses that are not readily apparenl from other sources, Such judgments, estimales and associated assumptions are evaluated based on the 
Company's hislorical experience, existing market conditions. as well as forward looking estlmates including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, Y81ich 
are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resulls may differ from these esUmates~ The estimates and under1y;ng assumptions are revie\Wd on 
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounling estimates are recognized in lhe period in v.-hich the estimate is revised if lhe revision affects only that period or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects bolh current and future periods. 

The followlng are the crilical judgements and ntimofions lhal have- bnen made by the management in lhe process of applying the Company's accounling policies 
and that have the most significant effect on the ,1J ffl0Url t recognl~d in the financial stalemenls and/or key sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a 
signilicant risk of causing a malerial adjustment to Lhe carrying amounts or assets and llabllllles within the nexl financial year. 

Useful llves of property, plant and equipment and intangible assel.9 
Management reviews Lhe useful lives or property, plant and oqulpmont and intangible assets al least once a year, The lives are dependent upon an assessment of 
both the technlcal lives of the asselS and also their likely ecionomk lives based on various lnlemal and external factors including relalive efficiency and operaling 
costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using lhe best information available lo the Managemenlr 

Employee benefit plans 
The present value of defined benefit obligations is determined on an actuarial basis using a number of underlying assumptions, including lhe discount rate and 
expected Increase in salary costs, Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of obligations. 

Fair value measurement offinancl3I Instruments 
When the fair values of financlal assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their 
fair value is mttBButed using valuation techniques lneluding the DCF model. The inpulS to lhese models are taken from observable markets where possible, but 
where lhis is not fen-sl ble, a degree of judgement is ~ulr~ in eslablishing fair values. Judgemenls include consideral.ions of inputs such as liquidity risk, credil risk 
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about lhese factors could affect the reported fair value of financial inslruments. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Impairment provision for financial assets (other than trade receivables) are based on assumptions of risk or default and expected loss rates. The Company 
makes judgements about these assumptions ror selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions 
as well 31 for.vard looking estimates at lhe end of each reporting period. 
Trade rocelvable:ii are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts which are based on the aging of the 
receivable balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are 'Millen off v.tlen management deems them not be collectible. 

Income Taxes 
Provision of current and deferred tax liabilities is dependent on r.~nagumunt estimate of the llllo'J.'3bllt)' or otheriMse of expenses incurred and other debits to profit 
or loss. Significant management judgement is required to delermine lha omcun1 or <lOfcmocl IAx o.uets: UUll can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the 
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, 

30. Other Statutory Information 

i. The company neither holds any benami property nor any proceedings have been initialed or pending against the company for holding benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 
ii. The comp.nny h:,:; nD lrnnsactlons with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956. 
iii, The C0moal'I)' l't3S: QClfflj;l~ed 'Nilh the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) or section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh Companies (Restriction on 
number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

iv. The company has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual currency during \he financial year. 
v. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, Including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
intoo,,t:dioryshall : 
(a) dl(c-cUy or indirecUy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behal( o( Lhe company (ultimate benericiaries) or 
(b) provide any guaranlee,security or lhe like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries, 

vi. The company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including roreign enlities (funding party) 'Nith the underslanding 
(Ylhether recorded in Vv'l'iting or othef'Vonse) that the company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invesl in other persons or entilies identified in any manner v.tiatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party 
(ultimate beneliciaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee,securily or lhe like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

vii. The company has not been declared as ....,lful defaulter by any bank, financial instilutions or other lender. 
viii. The company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books or accounts that has been, turrendered or dtsdo,ed as income during the 
year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provlatons of the Income T" Act, 1961. 

ix, The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impacl on current or previous financial year. 
x. There are no charges or salisfaclion which are yet to be registered with lhe Regislrar of Companies beyond lhe statutory period. 
xi. The provisions or Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure are not applicable to the company. 

31. Code on Social Security, 2020 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('the Code') received presidential assent on September 28, 2020. However, the dale on wtiich the Code WII come into effect has 
not yet been notified The Company 'Mil record any related financial impact of the Code in the books of account, in lhe period(s) in which Lhe Code becomes 
effecUve. 
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 

a) Name of the Related parties where control exists irrespective of whether the transactions 
have occurred or not. 

b) 

Related parties where controls exist - Parent Company 
Blue Star Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary with whom there are transactions 
Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited 

Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Vir S. Advani, Director 
Mr. B Thiagarajan, Director 
Mr. Shashi Arora, Director (Upto March 13, 2024) 
Mr. Devidas Vishwambar Kasbekar, Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Sivakumar Ramani, Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Neha Roy, Company Secretary 

For the year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 
Transactions with related partv 
Blue Star Limited 

Eauitv 
Issue of equity shares 41,840.00 
Assets 
Purchase of Prooertv, Plant and Eauioment 60.24 
Payment towards Capital work-in-proqress 747.32 
Transfer of loans given to employees 3.25 
Liabilities 
Transfer of employee liabilities 123.70 
Income 
Sale of Manufactured Goods 69,135.46 
Recovery of Expenses - Research and Development 151.03 
Recovery of Expenses 12.96 
Expenses 
Recovery of expenses - Shared Service 120.00 
Re-imbursement of expenses 2.77 
Corporate Guarantee charges -
Interest on inter corporate deposit 191.49 
Purchase of Material -

Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited 
Expenses 
Interest on inter coroorate deposit 272.66 
Purchase of Material -

f Lakhs 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

7,000.00 

128.00 
2,194.38 

-

-
13,127.79 

-
-

90.20 
-

19.36 
193.00 
154.00 

39.24 
24.58 
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c) Outstanding balances 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Blue Star Limited 
Balance due -Receivable/(payable) 
Creditors for capital expenditure (46.07) 
Trade Payables (44.38) 
Trade Receivables 13,556.08 

Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited 
Balance due -Receivable/(payable) 
Creditors for capital expenditure/Trade Payables -

d) Compensation of key managerial personnel For the year ended 
March 31 , 2024 

Short term employee benefits 274.02 

As at 
e) Loans from Related Party March 31, 2024 

Blue Star Limited 

Opening 3,500.00 
Loans Received -
Loans Repaid (1,000.00) 
Closing 2,500.00 

Blue Star Engineering and Electronics Limited 

Opening 3,500.00 
Loans Received 3,500.00 
Loans Repaid (3,500.00) 
Closing 3,500.00 

As at 
f) Loans to Related Party March 31, 2024 

Devidas Vishambar Kasbekar 
Openinq Balance 2.53 
Loan Recovery (0.4 7) 
Closing Balance 2.06 

33. Capital Commitments 

f Lakhs 
As at 

March 31 , 2023 

(620.60) 
-

6,075.37 

(6 .88) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

43.25 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

500.00 
4,500.00 

(1,500.00 
3,500.00 

-
3,500.00 

-
3,500.00 

As at 
March 31 , 2023 

-
-
-

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided :­
As at March 31,2024 company had commitments (net of advances) of~ 5,632.70 Lakhs 
( March 31,2023 - ~ 2,100.49 Lakhs) 
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34. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS DISCLOSURE 

Defined Benefit Plans 
a. Gratuity 
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan') covering eligible 
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the 
tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial 
valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit 
method. 

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. 
Gains and losses through remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Change in present value of defined benefit obligation 

Gratuity unfunded) 
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

i!' Lal<hs i!' Lakhs 
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 6.17 4.24 
Current service cost 9.29 2.99 
Interest cost 5.08 0.28 
Transfer In/Out 62.77 -
Remeasurements 

a. Due to change in demographic assumptions - -
b. Due to change in financial assumptions 0.66 (1.84) 
c. Due to experience adjustments 8.05 0 .50 

Defined benefit oblh1ation at the end of the vear 92.02 6.17 

GrattJ.itv unfunded) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31.2024 March 31 2023 

i!' Lakhs i!' Lakhs 

Components of defined benefit cost recognized in Profit 
or Loss 
Current service cost 9.29 2.99 
Interest Cost 5.08 0.28 
Defined benefit cost recognized in profit or loss 14.37 3.27 

Components of defined benefit cost recognized In Other Comprehensive Income 
b. Due to change in financial assumptions 0.66 (1.84) 
c. Due to change in experience adjustments 8.05 0.50 

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive 
income (OCI) 8.71 (1 .34) 

Net liability/ (assets) recognized In the balance sheet 
Gratuitv unfundodl 

Particulars As at March 31 2024 As at March 31 .2023 

' Lakhs i!' Lakhs 
Present value of defined benefit oblioation 92.02 6.17 
Net liabilitv / (assets) 92.02 6.17 

The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company's plan are as shown below: 

Gratuity (unfunded) 
Actuarial Assumptions For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 , 2024 March 31 , 2023 
Discount rate 7.15% 7.35% 
Disabilitv rate 5% of mortality Rate 5% of mortality Rate 
Normal retirement aqe 60 Years 60 Years 
Mortalitv rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14 

Management Staff: 7% 
Salary escalation rate others: 3% 7% 
Attrition Rate 14% Throughout 14% Throughout 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Risk Analysis 

Interest Rate Risk: The plan exposes the company to the risk of all interest rates. A fall in interest rates will 
result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the 
value of the liability (as shown in the financial statement). 

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the company is not able lo meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may 
arise due to non availability of enough cash/cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not 
being sold in time. 

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of 
salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan 
participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a 
bearing on the plan's liability. 

Demographic Risk: The company has used certain mortafity and attrition assumptions in valuation of the 
liability. The company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the 
assumption. 

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity 
Act, 1972 (as amended from lime to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity 
payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs 20,00,000). 

The present value of defined benefit obligation after change in assumptions are as under : 

Gratuitv unfunded\ 
Assumptions For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 2024 March 31, 2023 
Decrease in discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 93.79 7.43 
Increase in discount Rate(-/+ 0.5¾) 90.33 4.96 

Decrease in salary Growth Rate(-/+ 0.5%) 90.32 4.95 
Increase in salarv Growth Rate <-f+ 0.5%) 93.78 7.43 

Decrease in attrition Rate /-/+ 50% of attrition rates\ 93.98 7.25 
Increase In aurltion Rate (-/+ 50% of attrition rates) 90.24 5.18 

Decrease in Mortality Rate (-/+ 10% of mortality rates) 92.02 6.17 
Increase 1n Mortautv Rate (-I+ 10% of morta1,Iv rates) 92.02 6.17 

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on 
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring al the end of the 
reporting year 2023-24. 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year 2023-24 is 
3 years. 

Malurilv oroOle of defined benefit obliootion 
Expected cash flows over the next {valued on undiscounted basis) ' Lakhs 
1 year 
2 to 5 vears 
6 lo 10 yea rs 
More l/1an 1 O years 

II. Defined Contribution Plan 

a. Provident Fund 

13.10 
70.01 
22.47 
21.49 

The company's contribution to provident fund and other funds aggregating during the year ended March 
31,2024 is f 46.90 Lakhs (March 31,2023 - f 9.17 Lakhs) recognized in the statement of profit and loss under 
the head employee benefit expenses (Refer Note 24 ). 

General Description of significant defined plans: 
a. Gratuity Plan 
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on separation/retirement based on 15 days last drawn salary for 
each completed years' of service after continuous service for five years . 

b. Compensated Absences 
Under the compensated absences plan , leave encashment is payable lo all eligible employees on separation 
from the company due to death, retirement, super annualion or resignation at the rate of daily salary, as per the 
current accumulation of leave days. 

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet f Lakhs 

Particulars 
Compensated Absences as-al 

March 31 , 2024 March 31, 2023 
Amount rec nlzed In Balance Sheel 31 .31 19.89 

Amount recognized in Profit and loss t Lakhs 

Particulars 
Com ensated Absences for the ear ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Amount reco nized in Profit and Loss 19.04 19.08 
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35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company's objective for capital management is to maximize shareholder wealth, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the 
capital management requirement based on annual operating plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through optimum mix of 
borrowed and owned funds . 
The Company's adjusted net debt and equity position is as follows: 

Gearlna Ratio· 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 
BorrowinQs 6,000.00 27,856.95 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (329,08) (826.96) 
Net Debt 5,670.92 27,029.99 
Equity 52.863.45 8,758.19 
Gearing Ratio= (Net Debt/ Equity) x 1 DO 10.73% 308.63% 

36 FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended % Variance Reason for variance 

March 31, 2024 March 31 2023 
Increase in current ratio is due lo upscaling of business in 

Current ratio 1.19 0.73 63.61% the current year (commercial operations commenced 
from Quarter 4 of FY 2022-23). 

Debt-Equity ratio 0.11 3.18 -96,43% 
Decrease in Debt Equity ratio is due to the 
re-payment of outstanding term loans in FY 2023-24. 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) 0.23 0.44 -47.33% 
Decrease in Debt Service coverage ratio is due to the re-
payment of outstanding term loans in FY 2023-24. 

Increase in Return on equity is due to upscaling of 
Return on Equity Ratio (ROE) 7.38% -12.26% -160.16% business in the current year (commercial operations 

commenced from Quarter 4 of FY 2022-23). 

Inventory turnover ratio (No.of days) 62,67 248.29 -74 .76% 

Trade receivables turnover ratio (No. of days) 51 .54 166.53 -69.05% 
The changes in ratios is due to upscaling of business in 
the current year (commercial operations commenced 

Trade payables turnover ratio (No.of days) 75.64 127.58 -40.71% from Quarter 4 of FY 2022-23). 

The changes in Net capital turnover ratio is due to 
Net capital turnover ratio (In times) 14.09 (2.19) -744.11% upscaling of business in the current year (commercial 

operations commenced from Quarter 4 of FY 2022-23). 

The changes in Net profit ratio is due to upsca[ng or 
Net profit ratio 3.15% -4.84% -164,95% business in the current year (commercial operations 

commenced from Quarter 4 of FY 2022-23). 

The changes in Return on capital employed is due lo 
Return on Capital employed 10.68% 0.43% 2381 .60% upscaling of business in the current year (commercial 

operations commenced from Quarter 4 of FY 2022-23). 

Note: 
1. Schedule Ill require explanation where the change in ratio is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. 

Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities 
Debi/ Equity Ratio= Total Debi (Non-current borrowings+ current borrowings)/ Equity 
DSCR = [Earnings beFore interest and Tax] / [Interest expenses + Principal repayments made during the year for long term loans] 
Return on Equity Ratio= Net profit after tax/ Average shareholders equity X 100 
Inventory turnover (no. of days)= (Average Inventory for the year)/ Cost of Goods Sold for the year X Number of days in reporting year. 

Trade Receivable turnover ratio (no. of days)= (Average Debtors for the year)/ Turnover for the year X Number of days in reporting year. 

Trade payables turnover (no. of days)= (Average Creditors for the year)/ COGS for the year X Number of days in reporting year. 

Net capital turnover ratio (In times)= (Turnover for the year)/ Working Capital 

Net profit ratio(%)= (ProfiU(Loss) for the year)/ Total income X 100 

Return on capital employed (%) = EBITDA i.e. (Profit before tax) + Finance charges+ Depreciation)/ Capital employed 
Capital Employed= (Total Equity+ Non Current Borrowings+ Current Borrowings) X 100 
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37, DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND ATTACHED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE 

The Company has a forex risk management policy !hat ensures proactive and regular monitoring and managing of foreign exchange exposures~ Financial risks relating 
to changes in exchange rates are mitigated by forward and options contracts. The hedging strategy Is used towards managing currency nuctuation risk and the Company 
does not use roreign exchange forward and options contract for trading or speculative purposes.Forward and options conlracl are fair valued at each reporting dale. The 
resullant gain or loss of forward and option contract is recognized in the Profit or Loss. 
Commodity risk is mitigated by entering into annual rate contracts with major suppliers which are factored in pricing decisions. This approach provides sufficient 
mitigation against volalility in commodity rates, 

a. Derivative Instruments: Forwa.-d contract outstanding as at balance sheet date 

Asal Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

fo.-elgn Currency Amount In Amount in 
Foreign Currency , Lakhs Foreign Currency f lakhs 

tin lakh•I tin lakhsl 
Particulars of Forwa.-d Contract 
Forward eao\lot 10 Putchaso 
Forward cover aaainst und.ertvinCJ Davables (lncludinCJ commitments) 

- CNY/RMB 174.97 2,009-14 137_04 1,637-30 
- JPY 383.96 21 1,45 
- USO 38.93 3.251.32 17_06 1.401_82 

b. Particulars of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposure as al the Balance Sheet date 

Asal Asal 
March 31, 2024 March 31 r 2023 

foreign Currency Amount in Amount in 
Fo.-elgn Currency f Lakhs Foreign Currency f Lakhs 

fin lakhsl lin lakhsl 
Pavables 
CNY/RMB 
EUR . 0.05 4.1, 
JPY 381.71 210.21 324.78 200.06 
USD . 
ThO bt;toV0 l,iJb«;: OOetrioc )n(fudo forolgn currency exposure covered by dM'IWll " c CO(I~~ 11:. SUMcd in ta) abo'Y~ ahhotql not ,poofk'ailt/ In hodge 11:lllb~ 

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 2024 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total 
Carrying 

value 

flnanclal Assets 
lnvestmenls (refer note 7) 2,891 ,15 . 2.89115 

Loans (refer note 8) 17,◄0 17,40 

Other rinanClal assets (re(er note BA) 687 37 687 37 

lrade receivables (refer note 10) 1~.833,59 13,833,59 

Cash & bank balances (refer note 11 ) 329.0B 329 OB 

2891.15 14867.44 17758_59 

financial Liabilities 

Borrowings (refer nole 15) 6,000,00 6,000,00 
Trade payables (refer note 16) 16,782,84 16,782 84 
Creditor- capital expenditure (teFer note 17) 1,658,01 1,658.01 
Interest accrued bul not due on borrowinos Crefer note 17) 

24,440.85 24.440.85 

39, FAJR VALUE HIERARCHY 

The following table provides lhe fair value measurement hierarchy of lhe Company's assels and liabilities: 

Out1n1lt:1dvo dl:K.10 111.iru falrvailua mC1111.n m:imon1 hler.ud,y as lill M1uch 31 2024· 

Date of Partlculars 
ValuaUon 

An.a11.1 rt1c:!a11urod a, ,a.1, vajuo, : 
• lmia::&tmon.1§ In Mutwi.1 Fundt t ro!« .nota 1) March 31,2024 
D1Hiw1lves no, d,i:,atnn;a1cd ., htdgH 
- Fa1cla1, c:~tt1c forw:ud con1racts Irr.for noto \7\ March 31.2024 

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year. 

Ouaniu~rvo di r.o u t Ir val ' oc . ""' . uo m1:a:,urcim.e.n . .. .. . ' thl tdW :UM rd :J1 2.02:J • 

Particulars Date of 
Valuation 

Derivatives not designated as hedges (refer note 17) 
- Forei n e.xchanoe forward con.tracts March 31 , 2023 

There have been no lrans(ers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year, 
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and llabllltles measured at ralr value : 
Valuation technique used to determine fair value : 
1. Level •2: 
Mutual Fund - Quoted price in the active market 

Quoted prices 
Tot.11 in active markets 

1Level1l 
t Lo~~- f Lakhs 

2,691 .15 

2.15 

Quoted prices 
Total In active markets 

fLcvel1l 
f Lakhs t Lok"" 

1.24 

Derivative Instrument- Mark to market on forward covers is based on forward exchange rates al the end of reporting period .. 

Total Fair FVTFL 
value 

2,89L15 

17.40 

687 37 

13,833 59 

329 08 

1nsa.ss 

6,000.00 

16,782,84 . 
1,658.01 

24 440,85 

Significant 
observable inputs 

llcvcl 21 
f Lolths 

2,891.15 

2 15 

Significant 
observable Inputs 

(Level 2} 
l Lokht 

7 24 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Total Fair 
Carrying value 

value 

9 11 9,11 911 

77.64 77 64 77 64 

6.409.47 6,409 47 6,40947 

826 96 826 96 826 96 

7323.16 7323.18 7323,18 

27,856.95 27,856.95 27,856.95 

9,099.40 9,099 40 9,099.40 

2,604,82 2,604 82 2,604.82 

57.70 5770 57.70 

39.616.87 39.618.87 39 618.87 
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT oeJECTIVE & POLICIES 

The Company"s activities eiq>osc il to a variety of financial risks: markel risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk The Company's primary focus is to roresee lhe unpredictability of financial markets and 
seek to minimize polenllal adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk lo lhe Company is foreign exchange risk The Company uses derivative financial fnslruments to 
mitigate foreign exchange-related risk e)IJ)osures 

Market Risk 

Markel risk is lhe risk that lhe fair value of future cash now-sofa financial instrument \MIi fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel risk comprises two types of risks: Currency risk 
and interest rate risk.. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, trade payables, trade receivables, loans, and derivative financial inslrumenls. 

Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is lhe risk lhat the fair value or future cash nows of e>;>osure will nucluate because of changes In foreign exchange rales. The Company's exposure to the risk or changes 
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) Foreign currency risks are managed within the 
approved policy parameters utili2:ing foreign exchange rorward conlracls 

The following table demonstrates the foreign currency e,rposures recognised by the Company that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under: 

As a.t M.:,1ch J1. :z.o:z.c A$ ;;i M;;rch ll 202l 

Tn11do pll)l•bltl Hedging In foreign Net exposure in 
Trade p:ry,ablcl Hedging In Net exposure in Particulars Capita! Credl l,0nJ Net exposure Capllal CrotO'.llort, Net exposure 

in foreign currency 
currency foreign currency 

(' Lakhs) In foreign currency 
foreign currency foreign currency 

(' Lakhs) 
/1n Wlkh,I (In Lakhs) ( In Lakhs) Unuk .. l 

(In Lakhs) ( In Lakhs) 

Forolan Cunoncy 
CNY/RMB 9H3 174.91 . 
EUR 0.05 005 ,4,11 
JP"( 765.57 38198 311.71 21o:.?1 324.}6 :324.78 200.06 
USO 23.16 381)8 . 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity In multiple foreign currencies lo the t'unct!onal currency of the Company, wilh all other variables held constant The impact on the Company's 
profit before tax and equity Is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assels and liabilrt1es 

Chang• In currency 
Effect on ruom b11rora t ine Effffl on CCIUI~ 

Partleulars As at Maret, 31, exchange rate 
2024 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

JPY +5% (10_51) (10.00) (8 71) (8.29) 
-5% 1051 10,00 8 71 8 29 

EUR -t5% (0_21) (0.17) 
•5% 021 017 

Commodltv price risk 

The Company is subjecl to nuc\ualions in prices for the purchase of copper, alluminium, and olher raw material inputs, The Company purchased primarily all of its copper and allumlnium 
requiremenls at prevailing market rates during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

Commodity hedging is used primarily as a risk management tool to secure the future cash nows in case of volalilily by en1ering inlo commodity forward conlraclS. 
The following tab)e demonstrales the commodity e,rposu,es recognised by the Company thal have not been hedged by a derivalive inslrumenl or otherwise are as under: 

As 11t t.Lueh 31 2024 

Partlculars 
Tot.al oxnn:11u,• Hcd inn Unho-dacd cxDLtture-

Quantity (MT) Amount Quantity (MT) Amount Quantity (MT) Amount 
"In, •••• , (f In lakhs) c, lnlakbsl 

Copper 434 95 3,478 69 434.95 3,478 69 
Aluminium 200,96 616 87 200,96 616 87 

,u lilt M.1rcJi 31 202J 

Particulars 
TotalbDO!ium Hod , .. Un.hO'dc~d ~;,rDO!l:ute 

Quanmy (MT) Amount Quantity (MT) Amount Quantity (MT) Amounl 
If In lakhs' "In lakhs\ If: In lakhsl 

Copper 189 62 1,411 60 189.62 1,411.60 
Aluminium 198,56 657.59 198 56 657 59 

The follow Ing table demonstrates the Group's sensitivity to a 5% movement In the pr1ec of copper and alumlnlum. 

Ef(Kt on arofit bofor'O llH Effffl on .aum, 

Particulars 
Change In For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended 

cammodlly rate librcl\ 31 202A March 31 2023 March 31 2024 March J1 2023 

'° Lakhs f' Lakhs , Lakhs 'Lakhs 

Copper •S¾ (173 93) (70,58) (144 09) (58.<7) 

+5% 17393 70,58 144.09 58.47 
Aluminium •5% (30,84 ) (32.88) (30 84) (27 .24) 

+5% 30Jl4 32_88 30"' 27 ,24 
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Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows or a financial instrument will flucluate because or changes in market interest rates Company has exposure lo the ruture cash 
nows resulting from change in interesl rate as the Company's nel obligations carries variable interest rate. Interest rate change does not affect significantly lo the company. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading lo a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk rrom its 
operating activities, primarily from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions, and other financlal instruments 

1. Financial instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by Company's treasury In accordance with the Board approved policy. Investments of surplus funds, temporarily, are made only with approved 
counterparties, mainly mutual funds, who meet lhe minimum threshold requirements under the caunterparty risk assessment process. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is lhe risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations, The Company monitors the rolling forecast or its liquidity position based on expected cash flows. The 
Company's approach is to ensure that It has sufficient liquidity or borrowing headroom to meet its obligations at all points in lime The Company has sufficient short-term fund-based lines, which 
provide healthy liquidity and these carry the highest credit quality raUng from a reputed credit rating agency. 

The table below summarise the maturity profile or the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments: 

Partlc:ulars 

IT"'"" 
0Uw (lt'l:111!".irll lhbtlillH 
fl'l,'IMM1 M 

Particulars 

llni111J@Dth..mfW'lt1 .. -
T p"~h:-.i 

r rirnlnaal tli1bilW...1i 

lri:oret11onbatra'Mtto, 
To11I 

I.HI tbllln 1 vci.i r 
6.000.00 

16;782.SC 
1.6'60.16 

leu 1h.-,n 1 v.11 111r 
11,683.J.9 
9.0"9.• 0 
7115, 2.J()6i 

~HQ 
23 452,55 

,..s Ve11re More than 5 Years 

M tu MaR:h ~1. :Z.02.iJ 
1-5 Ve il,. More than S'Years 

16,173 5ti 

1.G,17l ..51i 

41, DISCLOSURE IN CONNECTION WITH REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS 

1. Disaggregation of revenue: 

t ltkhs 

16,/82.114 
1~G60,16 

Tobi 
27,&Sfl ,9'5 

9099.40 
1.612.06 

51.70 
39 61,&.11 

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2024 by offerings and contracMype. The Company believes that 
this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected by Industry, market and other economic factors: 

F«lha 
AU rn t ntlm~ 

2, Reconclllallon of contracted price with the revenue recognised In statement of profit or loss: 

Particulars 

Sbl• ofc,,ocruw at rronst•.11::tiOn _,..,. 
R 1,h, u:ubhle rnn 11lkln 
R~a r nizf!d irt, IV'Nll ~ tosa 

For the year ended 
March 31 2024 

7 1 ...... ,.21 
a.l!'Jl 

H.81,{'_,.., 
• Rl!dLa:litll'I. IOw~ds Y.ardiblo conskf«r.nn, compDlll:lt'llli TiciiJdOi discoo.n~. !.Of'V..oa knal Chld~. (llC_ 

42, LEASES 
Disclosure as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 

Amounts recognised in balance sheet 
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relatlng to leases: 

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: 

Particulars Note 

~IC rttlt 10 lhon •«m i ~ll,(I not lndudod 1ft lc.1U1:1 Mabtlllc,. 

43. Events after lhe reporting period 

For the year ended 
Marc:h 31 2'024 

1l.20 

No material events have occurred after the Balance Sheet date and upto the approval of the financial slatements 

t Who 
For the year ended l 

March 31 2023 
,. ru.7.92 

1 1..0IJll'I I 
For the year ended 

Marc:tl 31 2'02'3 
;;1 ,10 

? L•l{h.1 

Tot41 
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44. PREVIOUS YEAR COMPARATIVES 
Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified where necessary to confirm the current year classification. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
BLUE STAR CLIMATE H IMITF.D 

~~ ~ ik /~ 
B. Thiagarajan ~1 

Director 
DIN: 01790498 

Dev ekar 
Chi Officer 

Neh~ 
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Vir 5. Advani 
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~ n; 
Chief Financial Officer 
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